

No. 75
STATE OF MICHIGAN
JOURNAL
OF THE
House of Representatives
102nd Legislature
REGULAR SESSION OF 2023

House Chamber, Lansing, Wednesday, September 20, 2023.

10:00 a.m.

The House was called to order by the Speaker.

The roll was called by the Clerk of the House of Representatives, who announced that a quorum was present.

Aiyash—present	Dievendorf—present	Markkanen—present	Schriver—present
Alexander—present	Edwards—present	Martin—present	Schuette—present
Andrews—present	Farhat—present	Martus—present	Scott—present
Aragona—present	Filler—present	McFall—present	Shannon—present
Arbit—present	Fink—present	McKinney—present	Skaggs—present
Beeler—present	Fitzgerald—present	Meerman—present	Slagh—present
BeGole—present	Fox—present	Mentzer—present	Smit—present
Beson—present	Friske—present	Miller—present	Snyder—present
Bezotte—present	Glanville—present	Morgan—present	St. Germaine—present
Bierlein—present	Grant—present	Morse—present	Steckloff—present
Bollin—present	Green, P.—present	Mueller—present	Steele—present
Borton—present	Greene, J.—present	Neeley—present	Stone—present
Brabec—present	Haadsma—present	Neyer—present	Tate—present
Breen—present	Hall—present	O’Neal—present	Thompson—present
Brixie—present	Harris—present	Outman—present	Tisdell—present
Bruck—present	Hill—present	Paiz—present	Tsernoglou—present
Byrnes—present	Hoadley—present	Paquette—present	VanderWall—present
Carra—present	Hood—present	Pohutsky—present	VanWoerkom—present
Carter, B.—present	Hope—present	Posthumus—present	Wegela—present
Carter, T.—present	Hoskins—present	Prestin—present	Weiss—present
Cavitt—present	Johnsen—present	Price—present	Wendzel—present
Churches—present	Koleszar—present	Puri—present	Whitsett—present
Coffia—present	Kuhn—present	Rheingans—present	Wilson—present
Coleman—present	Kunse—present	Rigas—present	Witwer—present
Conlin—present	Liberati—present	Rogers—present	Wozniak—present
DeBoer—present	Lightner—present	Roth—present	Young—present
DeBoyer—present	MacDonell—present	Schmaltz—present	Zorn—present
DeSana—present	Maddock—present		

e/d/s = entered during session

Rep. Jasper Ryan Martus, from the 69th District, offered the following invocation:

“In I John it says that if God so loved us, we must also love one another. If all of us were made in image and likeness of God, and God was able to humble Himself to become human like you and I, then all of us are worthy of dignity and respect. So let us carry out that message witnessing and viewing God’s presence in each and every one of us, not just in the policy that we write, but in the way we conduct ourselves. Thank You.”

The Speaker called the Speaker Pro Tempore to the Chair.

Second Reading of Bills

Senate Bill No. 281, entitled

A bill to amend 1956 PA 218, entitled “The insurance code of 1956,” (MCL 500.100 to 500.8302) by adding section 3406aa.

Was read a second time, and the question being on the adoption of the proposed substitute (H-1) previously recommended by the Committee on Health Policy,

The substitute (H-1) was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Aiyash moved that the bill be placed on the order of Third Reading of Bills.

The motion prevailed.

Senate Bill No. 268, entitled

A bill to amend 1956 PA 218, entitled “The insurance code of 1956,” by amending section 2080 (MCL 500.2080), as amended by 2008 PA 513.

The bill was read a second time.

Rep. Aiyash moved that the bill be placed on the order of Third Reading of Bills.

The motion prevailed.

House Bill No. 4717, entitled

A bill to amend 1980 PA 299, entitled “Occupational code,” by amending section 2504a (MCL 339.2504a), as amended by 2020 PA 342.

Was read a second time, and the question being on the adoption of the proposed substitute (H-1) previously recommended by the Committee on Regulatory Reform,

The substitute (H-1) was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Grant moved that the bill be placed on the order of Third Reading of Bills.

The motion prevailed.

By unanimous consent the House returned to the order of

Reports of Standing Committees

The Committee on Higher Education, by Rep. Glanville, Chair, referred

House Bill No. 4932, entitled

A bill to amend 1978 PA 90, entitled “Youth employment standards act,” by amending sections 2, 3, 20, 21, and 22 (MCL 409.102, 409.103, 409.120, 409.121, and 409.122), section 2 as amended by 1996 PA 438, section 3 as amended by 1997 PA 132, and section 22 as amended by 1980 PA 436.

to the Committee on Labor.

Favorable Roll Call

To Refer:

Yeas: Reps. Glanville, Rheingans, Koleszar, Scott, Byrnes, Coffia, Hill, MacDonell, Paiz, VanderWall, Paquette, Zorn and Bruck

Nays: None

The bill was referred to the Committee on Labor.

The Committee on Higher Education, by Rep. Glanville, Chair, reported

House Bill No. 4982, entitled

A bill to amend 2015 PA 45, entitled “Higher education authorization and distance education reciprocal exchange act.” by amending section 7 (MCL 390.1697), as amended by 2017 PA 99.

Without amendment and with the recommendation that the bill pass.

The bill was referred to the order of Second Reading of Bills.

Favorable Roll Call

To Report Out:

Yeas: Reps. Glanville, Rheingans, Koleszar, Scott, Byrnes, Coffia, Hill, MacDonell, Paiz, VanderWall, Paquette, Zorn and Bruck

Nays: None

COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE REPORT

The following report, submitted by Rep. Glanville, Chair, of the Committee on Higher Education, was received and read:

Meeting held on: Wednesday, September 20, 2023

Present: Reps. Glanville, Rheingans, Koleszar, Scott, Byrnes, Coffia, Hill, MacDonell, Paiz, VanderWall, Paquette, Zorn and Bruck

Absent: Rep. DeSana

Excused: Rep. DeSana

Second Reading of Bills

House Bill No. 4982, entitled

A bill to amend 2015 PA 45, entitled “Higher education authorization and distance education reciprocal exchange act,” by amending section 7 (MCL 390.1697), as amended by 2017 PA 99.

The bill was read a second time.

Rep. Glanville moved that the bill be placed on the order of Third Reading of Bills.

The motion prevailed.

Rep. Aiyash moved that the bill be placed on its immediate passage.

The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

By unanimous consent the House returned to the order of

Third Reading of Bills

House Bill No. 4982, entitled

A bill to amend 2015 PA 45, entitled “Higher education authorization and distance education reciprocal exchange act.” by amending section 7 (MCL 390.1697), as amended by 2017 PA 99.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 290

Yeas—99

Aiyash	Edwards	Martin	Schuette
Alexander	Farhat	Martus	Scott
Andrews	Filler	McFall	Shannon
Aragona	Fink	McKinney	Skaggs
Arbit	Fitzgerald	Meerman	Slagh
BeGole	Fox	Mentzer	Snyder

Beson	Glanville	Miller	Steckloff
Bezotte	Grant	Morgan	Steele
Bierlein	Green, P.	Morse	Stone
Bollin	Haadsma	Mueller	Tate
Borton	Hall	Neeley	Thompson
Brabec	Harris	Neyer	Tisdell
Breen	Hill	O'Neal	Tsernoglou
Brixie	Hoadley	Outman	VanderWall
Bruck	Hood	Paiz	VanWoerkom
Bymes	Hope	Paquette	Wegela
Carter, B.	Hoskins	Pohutsky	Weiss
Carter, T.	Johnsen	Posthumus	Wendzel
Cavitt	Koleszar	Prestin	Whitsett
Churches	Kuhn	Price	Wilson
Coffia	Kunse	Puri	Witwer
Coleman	Liberati	Rheingans	Wozniak
Conlin	Lightner	Rogers	Young
DeBoer	MacDonell	Roth	Zorn
Dievendorf	Markkanen	Schmaltz	

Nays—11

Beeler	DeSana	Maddock	Smit
Carra	Friske	Rigas	St. Germaine
DeBoyer	Greene, J.	Schriver	

In The Chair: Pohutsky

The House agreed to the title of the bill.

Rep. Aiyash moved that the bill be given immediate effect.

The motion prevailed, 2/3 of the members serving voting therefor.

House Bill No. 4341, entitled

A bill to create a program to assist certain child care centers and schools with the acquisition, installation, and maintenance of certain filtered water stations and faucets; to provide for the sampling and testing of water from certain water outlets; to create certain funds; and to provide for the duties of certain state departments and officers.

The bill was read a third time.

The question being on the passage of the bill,

Rep. Puri moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 6, line 21, after the second “the” by striking out “2024-2025” and inserting “2025-2026”.

2. Amend page 7, line 2, after the second “the” by striking out “2024-2025” and inserting “2025-2026”.

The motion was seconded and the amendments were adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

The question being on the passage of the bill,

The bill was then passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 291

Yeas—76

Aiyash	Edwards	McFall	Schuette
Andrews	Farhat	McKinney	Scott

Arbit	Filler	Mentzer	Shannon
BeGole	Fitzgerald	Miller	Skaggs
Beson	Glanville	Morgan	Snyder
Bezotte	Grant	Morse	Steckloff
Brabec	Haadsma	Mueller	Stone
Breen	Hall	Neeley	Tate
Brixie	Harris	Neyer	Thompson
Bruck	Hill	O’Neal	Tisdell
Byrnes	Hood	Paiz	Tsernoglou
Carter, B.	Hope	Pohutsky	VanderWall
Carter, T.	Hoskins	Prestin	Wegela
Churches	Koleszar	Price	Weiss
Coffia	Kuhn	Puri	Whitsett
Coleman	Liberati	Rheingans	Wilson
Conlin	MacDonell	Rogers	Witwer
DeBoer	Martin	Roth	Wozniak
Dievendorf	Martus	Schmaltz	Young

Nays—34

Alexander	DeSana	Lightner	Schriver
Aragona	Fink	Maddock	Slagh
Beeler	Fox	Markkanen	Smit
Bierlein	Friske	Meerman	St. Germaine
Bollin	Green, P.	Outman	Steele
Borton	Greene, J.	Paquette	VanWoerkom
Carra	Hoadley	Posthumus	Wendzel
Cavitt	Johnsen	Rigas	Zorn
DeBoyer	Kunse		

In The Chair: Pohutsky

The House agreed to the title of the bill.
 Rep. Aiyash moved that the bill be given immediate effect.
 The motion prevailed, 2/3 of the members serving voting therefor.

House Bill No. 4342, entitled

A bill to amend 1973 PA 116, entitled “An act to provide for the protection of children through the licensing and regulation of child care organizations; to provide for the establishment of standards of care for child care organizations; to prescribe powers and duties of certain departments of this state and adoption facilitators; to provide penalties; and to repeal acts and parts of acts,” (MCL 722.111 to 722.128) by adding sections 3j, 3k, and 3l.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 292

Yeas—75

Aiyash	Edwards	McKinney	Scott
Andrews	Farhat	Mentzer	Shannon
Arbit	Filler	Miller	Skaggs
BeGole	Fitzgerald	Morgan	Snyder
Beson	Glanville	Morse	Steckloff

Bezotte	Grant	Mueller	Stone
Brabec	Haadsma	Neeley	Tate
Breen	Hall	Neyer	Thompson
Brixie	Hill	O'Neal	Tisdell
Bruck	Hood	Paiz	Tsernoglou
Byrnes	Hope	Pohutsky	VanderWall
Carter, B.	Hoskins	Prestin	Wegela
Carter, T.	Koleszar	Price	Weiss
Churches	Kuhn	Puri	Whitsett
Coffia	Liberati	Rheingans	Wilson
Coleman	MacDonell	Rogers	Witwer
Conlin	Martin	Roth	Wozniak
DeBoer	Martus	Schmaltz	Young
Dievendorf	McFall	Schuette	

Nays—35

Alexander	DeSana	Kunse	Schriver
Aragona	Fink	Lightner	Slagh
Beeler	Fox	Maddock	Smit
Bierlein	Friske	Markkanen	St. Germaine
Bollin	Green, P.	Meerman	Steele
Borton	Greene, J.	Outman	VanWoerkom
Carra	Harris	Paquette	Wendzel
Cavitt	Hoadley	Posthumus	Zorn
DeBoyer	Johnsen	Rigas	

In The Chair: Pohutsky

The House agreed to the title of the bill.

Rep. Aiyash moved that the bill be given immediate effect.

The motion prevailed, 2/3 of the members serving voting therefor.

By unanimous consent the House returned to the order of

Motions and Resolutions

Reps. Rheingans, Bezotte, Breen, Brixie, Fitzgerald, Glanville, Haadsma, Hill, Hood, Hope, Hoskins, Lightner, Paiz, Rogers, Schuette and Thompson offered the following resolution:

House Resolution No. 136.

A resolution to declare September 22, 2023, as Michigan Indian Day in the state of Michigan.

Whereas, The state of Michigan is home to many people indigenous to the Americas, sometimes referred to as Native American, Indian, or First Nation; and

Whereas, Michigan's current borders include the twelve federally recognized tribal nations with each having a unique and independent government with different management and decision-making structures which exercise sovereign authority; and

Whereas, Public Act 30 of 1974 established the fourth Friday in September as Indian Day in Michigan; and

Whereas, The people of the state of Michigan benefit from an understanding of the historical and contemporary lives of those who came before us and currently live on these pleasant peninsulas; and

Whereas, Our shared history of the place we call Michigan dates back approximately 14,000 years to the time before the last glacier retreated from the land, and humans, including the Anishinaabeg, populated the area. Our tribal partners pass along the history of these first people; and

Whereas, In 2002, the State of Michigan and federally recognized tribal nations entered into a government-to-government accord, providing a framework for a government-to government partnership that recognizes that the parties share a responsibility to provide for and protect the health, safety, and welfare of their

common citizens. The 2002 accord sought to enhance and improve communication between the parties, foster respect for their sovereign status, and facilitate the resolution of potentially contentious issues; and

Whereas, In 2019, the Governor signed Executive Directive 2019-17, to further strengthen relations between the State of Michigan and the federally recognized tribal nations. The directive reaffirmed the commitments made during the 2002 accord, reiterated tribal sovereignty, and ordered each executive branch department and agency to seek consultation on any actions or decisions that they make that would impact any of the tribes; and

Whereas, Michigan is honored to have twelve federally recognized tribes within its borders: the Bay Mills Chippewa Community, the Grand Traverse Bay Band of Ottawa and Chippewa Indians, the Hannahville Indian Community, the Keweenaw Bay Indian Community, the Lac Vieux Desert Band of Lake Superior Chippewa Indians, the Little River Band of Ottawa Indians, the Little Traverse Bay Bands of Odawa Indians, the Match-e-be-nash-she-wish Band of Potawatomi Indians of Michigan, the Nottawaseppi Huron Band of Potawatomi Indians, the Pokagon Band of Potawatomi Indians, the Saginaw Chippewa Indian Tribe, and the Sault Ste. Marie Tribe of Chippewa Indians; and

Whereas, The state of Michigan and our tribal partners have engaged in many fruitful and cooperative efforts to improve the lives of our citizens and Michigan Indian Day is an annual opportunity to honor those accomplishments; now, therefore, be it

Resolved by the House of Representatives, That the members of this legislative body declare September 22, 2023, as Michigan Indian Day in the state of Michigan. We recognize the significant contributions of Indian nations, their citizens, and predecessors to our great state's rich history and bright future; and be it further

Resolved, That our common future will be improved with thorough cooperation and communication between tribal and state leadership.

The question being on the adoption of the resolution,

The resolution was adopted.

Reports of Standing Committees

The Committee on Appropriations, by Rep. Witwer, Chair, reported

House Bill No. 4988, entitled

A bill to amend 1937 PA 284, entitled "An act to prevent the spread of infectious and contagious diseases of livestock; to require persons, associations, partnerships and corporations engaged in the buying, receiving, selling, transporting, exchanging, negotiating, or soliciting sale, resale, exchange or transportation of livestock to be licensed and bonded by the department of agriculture; to keep a producers' proceeds account; to provide for the refusal, suspension or revocation of such licenses; to provide for weighmasters; to provide for the inspection and disinfection of yards, premises and vehicles; and to provide penalties for the violation of this act," by amending section 3 (MCL 287.123), as amended by 2019 PA 86.

With the recommendation that the substitute (H-1) be adopted and that the bill then pass.

The bill and substitute were referred to the order of Second Reading of Bills.

Favorable Roll Call

To Report Out:

Yeas: Reps. Witwer, O'Neal, Brixie, Brabec, Morse, Puri, Steckloff, Weiss, Martus, McKinney, Mentzer, Morgan, Price, Skaggs, Snyder and Wilson

Nays: Reps. Lightner, Bollin, Slagh, Beson, Borton, Fink, Cavitt, DeBoer, Kuhn, Schuette and Steele

The Committee on Appropriations, by Rep. Witwer, Chair, reported

House Bill No. 4989, entitled

A bill to amend 2000 PA 92, entitled "Food law," by amending sections 3119, 4103, and 4117 (MCL 289.3119, 289.4103, and 289.4117), sections 3119 and 4103 as amended by 2018 PA 92 and section 4117 as amended by 2012 PA 178.

With the recommendation that the substitute (H-3) be adopted and that the bill then pass.

The bill and substitute were referred to the order of Second Reading of Bills.

Favorable Roll Call

To Report Out:

Yeas: Reps. Witwer, O'Neal, Brixie, Brabec, Morse, Puri, Steckloff, Weiss, Martus, McKinney, Mentzer, Morgan, Price, Skaggs, Snyder and Wilson

Nays: Reps. Lightner, Bollin, Slagh, Beson, Borton, Fink, Cavitt, DeBoer, Kuhn, Schuette and Steele

The Committee on Appropriations, by Rep. Witwer, Chair, reported

House Bill No. 4990, entitled

A bill to amend 1949 PA 300, entitled "Michigan vehicle code," by amending sections 208b, 217a, 232, 801, 802, 803b, 803r, 804, 806, and 809 (MCL 257.208b, 257.217a, 257.232, 257.801, 257.802, 257.803b, 257.803r, 257.804, 257.806, and 257.809), section 208b as amended by 2020 PA 382, sections 217a, 803b, 803r, and 806 as amended by 2019 PA 88, section 232 as amended by 2022 PA 223, section 801 as amended by 2020 PA 103, section 802 as amended by 2021 PA 110, section 804 as amended by 2022 PA 143, and section 809 as amended by 2020 PA 102.

With the recommendation that the substitute (H-2) be adopted and that the bill then pass.

The bill and substitute were referred to the order of Second Reading of Bills.

Favorable Roll Call

To Report Out:

Yeas: Reps. Witwer, O'Neal, Brixie, Brabec, Morse, Puri, Steckloff, Weiss, Martus, McKinney, Mentzer, Morgan, Price, Skaggs, Snyder and Wilson

Nays: Reps. Lightner, Bollin, Slagh, Beson, Borton, Fink, Cavitt, DeBoer, Kuhn, Schuette and Steele

The Committee on Appropriations, by Rep. Witwer, Chair, reported

House Bill No. 4991, entitled

A bill to amend 1972 PA 222, entitled "An act to provide for an official personal identification card; to provide for its form, issuance and use; to regulate the use and disclosure of information obtained from the card; to prescribe the powers and duties of the secretary of state; to prescribe fees; to prescribe certain penalties for violations; and to provide an appropriation for certain purposes," by amending section 7 (MCL 28.297), as amended by 2019 PA 80.

With the recommendation that the substitute (H-1) be adopted and that the bill then pass.

The bill and substitute were referred to the order of Second Reading of Bills.

Favorable Roll Call

To Report Out:

Yeas: Reps. Witwer, O'Neal, Brixie, Brabec, Morse, Puri, Steckloff, Weiss, Martus, McKinney, Mentzer, Morgan, Price, Skaggs, Snyder and Wilson

Nays: Reps. Lightner, Bollin, Slagh, Beson, Borton, Fink, Cavitt, DeBoer, Kuhn and Steele

The Committee on Appropriations, by Rep. Witwer, Chair, reported

House Bill No. 4993, entitled

A bill to amend 1979 PA 152, entitled "State license fee act," by amending sections 13, 17, 21, 25, 27, 31, 37, and 38 (MCL 338.2213, 338.2217, 338.2221, 338.2225, 338.2227, 338.2231, 338.2237, and 338.2238), as amended by 2019 PA 71.

With the recommendation that the substitute (H-2) be adopted and that the bill then pass.

The bill and substitute were referred to the order of Second Reading of Bills.

Favorable Roll Call

To Report Out:

Yeas: Reps. Witwer, O'Neal, Brixie, Brabec, Morse, Puri, Steckloff, Weiss, Martus, McKinney, Mentzer, Morgan, Price, Skaggs, Snyder and Wilson

Nays: Reps. Lightner, Bollin, Slagh, Beson, Borton, Fink, Cavitt, DeBoer, Kuhn, Schuette and Steele

The Committee on Appropriations, by Rep. Witwer, Chair, reported

House Bill No. 4994, entitled

A bill to amend 2008 PA 551, entitled "Uniform securities act (2002)," by amending section 410 (MCL 451.2410), as amended by 2019 PA 73.

With the recommendation that the substitute (H-2) be adopted and that the bill then pass.

The bill and substitute were referred to the order of Second Reading of Bills.

Favorable Roll Call

To Report Out:

Yeas: Reps. Witwer, O'Neal, Brixie, Brabec, Morse, Puri, Steckloff, Weiss, Martus, McKinney, Mentzer, Morgan, Price, Skaggs, Snyder and Wilson

Nays: Reps. Lightner, Bollin, Slagh, Beson, Borton, Fink, Cavitt, DeBoer, Kuhn, Schuette and Steele

The Committee on Appropriations, by Rep. Witwer, Chair, reported

House Bill No. 4995, entitled

A bill to amend 1993 PA 23, entitled "Michigan limited liability company act," by amending section 1101 (MCL 450.5101), as amended by 2019 PA 70.

With the recommendation that the substitute (H-2) be adopted and that the bill then pass.

The bill and substitute were referred to the order of Second Reading of Bills.

Favorable Roll Call

To Report Out:

Yeas: Reps. Witwer, O'Neal, Brixie, Brabec, Morse, Puri, Steckloff, Weiss, Martus, McKinney, Mentzer, Morgan, Price, Skaggs, Snyder and Wilson

Nays: Reps. Lightner, Bollin, Slagh, Beson, Borton, Fink, Cavitt, DeBoer, Kuhn, Schuette and Steele

The Committee on Appropriations, by Rep. Witwer, Chair, reported

House Bill No. 4996, entitled

A bill to amend 1982 PA 162, entitled "Nonprofit corporation act," by amending section 1060 (MCL 450.3060), as amended by 2019 PA 69.

With the recommendation that the substitute (H-2) be adopted, and that the bill then pass.

The bill and substitute were referred to the order of Second Reading of Bills.

Favorable Roll Call

To Report Out:

Yeas: Reps. Witwer, O'Neal, Brixie, Brabec, Morse, Puri, Steckloff, Weiss, Martus, McKinney, Mentzer, Morgan, Price, Skaggs, Snyder and Wilson

Nays: Reps. Lightner, Bollin, Slagh, Beson, Borton, Fink, Cavitt, DeBoer, Kuhn, Schuette and Steele

The Committee on Appropriations, by Rep. Witwer, Chair, reported

House Bill No. 4997, entitled

A bill to amend 1972 PA 284, entitled "Business corporation act," by amending section 1060 (MCL 450.2060), as amended by 2019 PA 68.

With the recommendation that the substitute (H-2) be adopted and that the bill then pass.

The bill and substitute were referred to the order of Second Reading of Bills.

Favorable Roll Call

To Report Out:

Yeas: Reps. Witwer, O'Neal, Brixie, Brabec, Morse, Puri, Steckloff, Weiss, Martus, McKinney, Mentzer, Morgan, Price, Skaggs, Snyder and Wilson

Nays: Reps. Lightner, Bollin, Slagh, Beson, Borton, Fink, Cavitt, DeBoer, Kuhn, Schuette and Steele

The Committee on Appropriations, by Rep. Witwer, Chair, reported

House Bill No. 5000, entitled

A bill to amend 1935 PA 120, entitled “An act to prescribe a method for the fingerprinting of residents of the state; to provide for the recording and filing of the fingerprints by the central records division of the department of state police; and to impose a fee,” by amending section 3 (MCL 28.273), as amended by 2019 PA 78.

With the recommendation that the substitute (H-1) be adopted and that the bill then pass.

The bill and substitute were referred to the order of Second Reading of Bills.

Favorable Roll Call

To Report Out:

Yeas: Reps. Witwer, O’Neal, Brixie, Brabec, Morse, Puri, Steckloff, Weiss, Martus, McKinney, Mentzer, Morgan, Price, Skaggs, Snyder and Wilson

Nays: Rep. Steele

The Committee on Appropriations, by Rep. Witwer, Chair, reported

House Bill No. 5003, entitled

A bill to amend 1974 PA 258, entitled “Mental health code,” by amending section 139 (MCL 330.1139), as amended by 2019 PA 83.

With the recommendation that the substitute (H-1) be adopted and that the bill then pass.

The bill and substitute were referred to the order of Second Reading of Bills.

Favorable Roll Call

To Report Out:

Yeas: Reps. Witwer, O’Neal, Brixie, Brabec, Morse, Puri, Steckloff, Weiss, Martus, McKinney, Mentzer, Morgan, Price, Skaggs, Snyder and Wilson

Nays: Reps. Lightner, Bollin, Slagh, Beson, Borton, Fink, Cavitt, DeBoer, Kuhn, Schuette and Steele

The Committee on Appropriations, by Rep. Witwer, Chair, reported

House Bill No. 5004, entitled

A bill to amend 1978 PA 368, entitled “Public health code,” by amending sections 5801, 6237, 13522, and 20161 (MCL 333.5801, 333.6237, 333.13522, and 333.20161), section 5801 as amended by 2015 PA 91, section 6237 as amended by 2019 PA 75, section 13522 as amended by 1994 PA 100, and section 20161 as amended by 2022 PA 187.

With the recommendation that the substitute (H-3) be adopted and that the bill then pass.

The bill and substitute were referred to the order of Second Reading of Bills.

Favorable Roll Call

To Report Out:

Yeas: Reps. Witwer, O’Neal, Brixie, Brabec, Morse, Puri, Steckloff, Weiss, Martus, McKinney, Mentzer, Morgan, Price, Skaggs, Snyder and Wilson

Nays: Reps. Lightner, Bollin, Slagh, Beson, Borton, Fink, Cavitt, DeBoer, Kuhn, Schuette and Steele

The Committee on Appropriations, by Rep. Witwer, Chair, reported

House Bill No. 5007, entitled

A bill to amend 1994 PA 451, entitled “Natural resources and environmental protection act,” by amending sections 3104, 3110, 3118, 3120, 3122, 3132, 3306, 4104, 4112, 5522, 9123, 11108, 11109, 11123, 11153, 11509, 11512, 11525a, 11717b, 12109, 12112, 16904, 17303, 17317, 21506a, 21508, 30104, 30109, 31509, 32312, 32513, 32707, 32723, 33911, 33929, 61525, 61525a, 62509, 62509a, 63103d, 63205, 63215, 63405, 63413, 63711, 80130, 80315, 81114, and 82156 (MCL 324.3104, 324.3110, 324.3118, 324.3120, 324.3122,

324.3132, 324.3306, 324.4104, 324.4112, 324.5522, 324.9123, 324.11108, 324.11109, 324.11123, 324.11153, 324.11509, 324.11512, 324.11525a, 324.11717b, 324.12109, 324.12112, 324.16904, 324.17303, 324.17317, 324.21506a, 324.21508, 324.30104, 324.30109, 324.31509, 324.32312, 324.32513, 324.32707, 324.32723, 324.33911, 324.33929, 324.61525, 324.61525a, 324.62509, 324.62509a, 324.63103d, 324.63205, 324.63215, 324.63405, 324.63413, 324.63711, 324.80130, 324.80315, 324.81114, and 324.82156), sections 3104, 3110, 3118, 3120, 4104, 11153, 30104, 30109, 32312, and 32513 as amended by 2021 PA 91, sections 3122 and 4112 as amended by 2019 PA 79, section 3132 as added by 1997 PA 29, section 3306 as amended by 2014 PA 253, section 5522 as amended by 2019 PA 119, section 9123 as amended by 2000 PA 504, section 11108 as amended by 2013 PA 73, section 11109 as added by 2018 PA 689, section 11123 as amended by 2014 PA 254, sections 11509 and 11512 as amended by 2022 PA 245, section 11525a as amended by 2022 PA 246, section 11717b as amended by 2008 PA 492, sections 12109 and 12112 as amended by 2017 PA 90, section 16904 as amended by 2014 PA 543, sections 17303 and 17317 as amended by 2019 PA 85, section 21506a as amended by 2017 PA 134, section 21508 as amended by 2016 PA 467, sections 31509, 61525, and 62509 as amended by 2004 PA 325, section 32707 as amended by 2008 PA 182, section 32723 as amended by 2008 PA 180, sections 33911 and 33929 as amended by 2006 PA 496, section 61525a as added by 1998 PA 252, section 62509a as added by 1998 PA 467, section 63103d as amended by 2011 PA 214, sections 63205 and 63215 as added by 2004 PA 449, sections 63405 and 63413 as added by 2017 PA 40, section 63711 as added by 1995 PA 57, and sections 80130, 80315, 81114, and 82156 as amended by 2019 PA 81.

With the recommendation that the substitute (H-3) be adopted and that the bill then pass.

The bill and substitute were referred to the order of Second Reading of Bills.

Favorable Roll Call

To Report Out:

Yeas: Reps. Witwer, O'Neal, Brixie, Brabec, Morse, Puri, Steckloff, Weiss, Martus, McKinney, Mentzer, Morgan, Price, Skaggs, Snyder and Wilson

Nays: Reps. Lightner, Bollin, Slagh, Beson, Borton, Fink, Cavitt, DeBoer, Kuhn, Schuette and Steele

COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE REPORT

The following report, submitted by Rep. Witwer, Chair, of the Committee on Appropriations, was received and read:

Meeting held on: Wednesday, September 20, 2023

Present: Reps. Witwer, O'Neal, Brixie, Brabec, Morse, Puri, Steckloff, Weiss, Martus, McKinney, Mentzer, Morgan, Price, Skaggs, Snyder, Wilson, Lightner, Bollin, Green, Slagh, Beson, Borton, Fink, Cavitt, DeBoer, Kuhn, Schuette and Steele

Absent: Rep. Hood

Excused: Rep. Hood

Second Reading of Bills

House Bill No. 4988, entitled

A bill to amend 1937 PA 284, entitled "An act to prevent the spread of infectious and contagious diseases of livestock; to require persons, associations, partnerships and corporations engaged in the buying, receiving, selling, transporting, exchanging, negotiating, or soliciting sale, resale, exchange or transportation of livestock to be licensed and bonded by the department of agriculture; to keep a producers' proceeds account; to provide for the refusal, suspension or revocation of such licenses; to provide for weighmasters; to provide for the inspection and disinfection of yards, premises and vehicles; and to provide penalties for the violation of this act," by amending section 3 (MCL 287.123), as amended by 2019 PA 86.

Was read a second time, and the question being on the adoption of the proposed substitute (H-1) previously recommended by the Committee on Appropriations,

The substitute (H-1) was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Phil Green moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 2, line 11, after “1,” by striking out “2027,” and inserting “2025.”

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Martus moved that the bill be placed on the order of Third Reading of Bills.

The motion prevailed.

Rep. Aiyash moved that the bill be placed on its immediate passage.

The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

By unanimous consent the House returned to the order of

Third Reading of Bills

House Bill No. 4988, entitled

A bill to amend 1937 PA 284, entitled “An act to prevent the spread of infectious and contagious diseases of livestock; to require persons, associations, partnerships and corporations engaged in the buying, receiving, selling, transporting, exchanging, negotiating, or soliciting sale, resale, exchange or transportation of livestock to be licensed and bonded by the department of agriculture; to keep a producers’ proceeds account; to provide for the refusal, suspension or revocation of such licenses; to provide for weighmasters; to provide for the inspection and disinfection of yards, premises and vehicles; and to provide penalties for the violation of this act,” by amending section 3 (MCL 287.123), as amended by 2019 PA 86.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 293

Yeas—56

Aiyash	Edwards	McFall	Scott
Andrews	Farhat	McKinney	Shannon
Arbit	Fitzgerald	Mentzer	Skaggs
Brabec	Glanville	Miller	Snyder
Breen	Grant	Morgan	Steckloff
Brixie	Haadsma	Morse	Stone
Byrnes	Hill	Neeley	Tate
Carter, B.	Hood	O’Neal	Tsernoglou
Carter, T.	Hope	Paiz	Wegela
Churches	Hoskins	Pohutsky	Weiss
Coffia	Koleszar	Price	Whitsett
Coleman	Liberati	Puri	Wilson
Conlin	MacDonell	Rheingans	Witwer
Dievendorf	Martus	Rogers	Young

Nays—54

Alexander	DeSana	Maddock	Schriver
Aragona	Filler	Markkanen	Schuette
Beeler	Fink	Martin	Slaght
BeGole	Fox	Meerman	Smit
Beson	Friske	Mueller	St. Germaine
Bezotte	Green, P.	Neyer	Steele
Bierlein	Greene, J.	Outman	Thompson
Bollin	Hall	Paquette	Tisdell
Borton	Harris	Posthumus	VanderWall
Bruck	Hoadley	Prestin	VanWoerkom
Carra	Johnsen	Rigas	Wendzel
Cavitt	Kuhn	Roth	Wozniak

DeBoer
DeBoyer

Kunse
Lightner

Schmaltz

Zorn

In The Chair: Pohutsky

The House agreed to the title of the bill.
Rep. Aiyash moved that the bill be given immediate effect.
The motion prevailed, 2/3 of the members serving voting therefor.

Second Reading of Bills

House Bill No. 4989, entitled

A bill to amend 2000 PA 92, entitled “Food law,” by amending sections 3119, 4103, and 4117 (MCL 289.3119, 289.4103, and 289.4117), sections 3119 and 4103 as amended by 2018 PA 92 and section 4117 as amended by 2012 PA 178.

Was read a second time, and the question being on the adoption of the proposed substitute (H-3) previously recommended by the Committee on Appropriations,

The substitute (H-3) was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Slagh moved to amend the bill as follows:

- 1. Amend page 1, line 1, after “31,” by striking out “2027,” and inserting “2025.”

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Martus moved that the bill be placed on the order of Third Reading of Bills.

The motion prevailed.

Rep. Aiyash moved that the bill be placed on its immediate passage.

The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

By unanimous consent the House returned to the order of

Third Reading of Bills

House Bill No. 4989, entitled

A bill to amend 2000 PA 92, entitled “Food law,” by amending sections 3119, 4103, and 4117 (MCL 289.3119, 289.4103, and 289.4117), sections 3119 and 4103 as amended by 2018 PA 92 and section 4117 as amended by 2012 PA 178.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 294

Yeas—56

Aiyash	Edwards	McFall	Scott
Andrews	Farhat	McKinney	Shannon
Arbit	Fitzgerald	Mentzer	Skaggs
Brabec	Glanville	Miller	Snyder
Breen	Grant	Morgan	Steckloff
Brixie	Haadsma	Morse	Stone
Byrnes	Hill	Neeley	Tate
Carter, B.	Hood	O’Neal	Tsernoglou
Carter, T.	Hope	Paiz	Wegela
Churches	Hoskins	Pohutsky	Weiss
Coffia	Koleszar	Price	Whitsett
Coleman	Liberati	Puri	Wilson
Conlin	MacDonell	Rheingans	Witwer
Dievendorf	Martus	Rogers	Young

Nays—54

Alexander	DeSana	Maddock	Schriver
Aragona	Filler	Markkanen	Schuette
Beeler	Fink	Martin	Slagh
BeGole	Fox	Meerman	Smit
Beson	Friske	Mueller	St. Germaine
Bezotte	Green, P.	Neyer	Steele
Bierlein	Greene, J.	Outman	Thompson
Bollin	Hall	Paquette	Tisdell
Borton	Harris	Posthumus	VanderWall
Bruck	Hoadley	Prestin	VanWoerkom
Carra	Johnsen	Rigas	Wendzel
Cavitt	Kuhn	Roth	Wozniak
DeBoer	Kunse	Schmaltz	Zorn
DeBoyer	Lightner		

In The Chair: Pohutsky

The House agreed to the title of the bill.

Rep. Aiyash moved that the bill be given immediate effect.

The motion prevailed, 2/3 of the members serving voting therefor.

Second Reading of Bills

House Bill No. 4990, entitled

A bill to amend 1949 PA 300, entitled “Michigan vehicle code,” by amending sections 208b, 217a, 232, 801, 802, 803b, 803r, 804, 806, and 809 (MCL 257.208b, 257.217a, 257.232, 257.801, 257.802, 257.803b, 257.803r, 257.804, 257.806, and 257.809), section 208b as amended by 2020 PA 382, sections 217a, 803b, 803r, and 806 as amended by 2019 PA 88, section 232 as amended by 2022 PA 223, section 801 as amended by 2020 PA 103, section 802 as amended by 2021 PA 110, section 804 as amended by 2022 PA 143, and section 809 as amended by 2020 PA 102.

Was read a second time, and the question being on the adoption of the proposed substitute (H-2) previously recommended by the Committee on Appropriations,

The substitute (H-2) was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Bollin moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 2, line 4, by striking out “of **\$15.00 per record.**” and inserting “specified annually by the legislature, or if the legislature does not specify a fee, a market-based price established by the secretary of state. **For fiscal year ending September 30, 2024, the fee is \$11.00 per record.**”.

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Beson moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 2, line 7, after “1,” by striking out “2027” and inserting “2025”.
2. Amend page 4, line 24, after “1,” by striking out “2027” and inserting “2025”.
3. Amend page 6, line 8, after “1,” by striking out “2027” and inserting “2025”.
4. Amend page 21, line 19, after “1,” by striking out “2027” and inserting “2025”.
5. Amend page 27, line 11, after “1,” by striking out “2027” and inserting “2025”.
6. Amend page 28, line 2, after “1,” by striking out “2027” and inserting “2025”.
7. Amend page 29, line 14, after “1,” by striking out “2027” and inserting “2025”.
8. Amend page 30, line 8, after “1,” by striking out “2027” and inserting “2025”.
9. Amend page 30, line 10, after “1,” by striking out “2027” and inserting “2025”.
10. Amend page 30, line 19, after “1,” by striking out “2027” and inserting “2025”.

- 11. Amend page 30, line 20, after “1,” by striking out “2027” and inserting “2025”.
- 12. Amend page 30, line 26, after “31,” by striking out “2027” and inserting “2025”.
- 13. Amend page 32, line 11, after “1,” by striking out “2027” and inserting “2025”.

The motion did not prevail and the amendments were not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Brabec moved that the bill be placed on the order of Third Reading of Bills.
The motion prevailed.

Rep. Aiyash moved that the bill be placed on its immediate passage.
The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

By unanimous consent the House returned to the order of
Third Reading of Bills

House Bill No. 4990, entitled

A bill to amend 1949 PA 300, entitled “Michigan vehicle code,” by amending sections 208b, 217a, 232, 801, 802, 803b, 803r, 804, 806, and 809 (MCL 257.208b, 257.217a, 257.232, 257.801, 257.802, 257.803b, 257.803r, 257.804, 257.806, and 257.809), section 208b as amended by 2020 PA 382, sections 217a, 803b, 803r, and 806 as amended by 2019 PA 88, section 232 as amended by 2022 PA 223, section 801 as amended by 2020 PA 103, section 802 as amended by 2021 PA 110, section 804 as amended by 2022 PA 143, and section 809 as amended by 2020 PA 102.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 295

Yeas—56

Aiyash	Edwards	McFall	Scott
Andrews	Farhat	McKinney	Shannon
Arbit	Fitzgerald	Mentzer	Skaggs
Brabec	Glanville	Miller	Snyder
Breen	Grant	Morgan	Steckloff
Brixie	Haadsma	Morse	Stone
Byrnes	Hill	Neeley	Tate
Carter, B.	Hood	O’Neal	Tsernoglou
Carter, T.	Hope	Paiz	Wegela
Churches	Hoskins	Pohutsky	Weiss
Coffia	Koleszar	Price	Whitsett
Coleman	Liberati	Puri	Wilson
Conlin	MacDonell	Rheingans	Witwer
Dievendorf	Martus	Rogers	Young

Nays—54

Alexander	DeSana	Maddock	Schriver
Aragona	Filler	Markkanen	Schuette
Beeler	Fink	Martin	Slaght
BeGole	Fox	Meerman	Smit
Beson	Friske	Mueller	St. Germaine
Bezotte	Green, P.	Neyer	Steele
Bierlein	Greene, J.	Outman	Thompson
Bollin	Hall	Paquette	Tisdell
Borton	Harris	Posthumus	VanderWall
Bruck	Hoadley	Prestin	VanWoerkom
Carra	Johnsen	Rigas	Wendzel
Cavitt	Kuhn	Roth	Wozniak

DeBoer
DeBoyer

Kunse
Lightner

Schmaltz

Zorn

In The Chair: Pohutsky

The House agreed to the title of the bill.

Rep. Aiyash moved that the bill be given immediate effect.

The motion prevailed, 2/3 of the members serving voting therefor.

Second Reading of Bills

House Bill No. 4991, entitled

A bill to amend 1972 PA 222, entitled “An act to provide for an official personal identification card; to provide for its form, issuance and use; to regulate the use and disclosure of information obtained from the card; to prescribe the powers and duties of the secretary of state; to prescribe fees; to prescribe certain penalties for violations; and to provide an appropriation for certain purposes,” by amending section 7 (MCL 28.297), as amended by 2019 PA 80.

Was read a second time, and the question being on the adoption of the proposed substitute (H-1) previously recommended by the Committee on Appropriations,

The substitute (H-1) was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Bollin moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 2, line 1, by striking out “of **\$15.00.**” and inserting “specified annually by the legislature, or if the legislature does not specify a fee, a market-based price established by the secretary of state. **For fiscal year ending September 30, 2024, the fee is \$11.00 per record.**”

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Borton moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 2, line 3, after “1,” by striking out “2027” and inserting “2025”.

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Brabec moved that the bill be placed on the order of Third Reading of Bills.

The motion prevailed.

House Bill No. 4993, entitled

A bill to amend 1979 PA 152, entitled “State license fee act,” by amending sections 13, 17, 21, 25, 27, 31, 37, and 38 (MCL 338.2213, 338.2217, 338.2221, 338.2225, 338.2227, 338.2231, 338.2237, and 338.2238), as amended by 2019 PA 71.

Was read a second time, and the question being on the adoption of the proposed substitute (H-2) previously recommended by the Committee on Appropriations,

The substitute (H-2) was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Fink moved to substitute (H-3) the bill.

The motion did not prevail and the substitute (H-3) was not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Skaggs moved that the bill be placed on the order of Third Reading of Bills.

The motion prevailed.

House Bill No. 4994, entitled

A bill to amend 2008 PA 551, entitled “Uniform securities act (2002),” by amending section 410 (MCL 451.2410), as amended by 2019 PA 73.

Was read a second time, and the question being on the adoption of the proposed substitute (H-2) previously recommended by the Committee on Appropriations,

The substitute (H-2) was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Cavitt moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 1, line 1, after "1," by striking out "2027," and inserting "2025,".
2. Amend page 1, line 5, by striking out "2027," and inserting "2025,".
3. Amend page 2, line 1, after "1," by striking out "2027," and inserting "2025,".
4. Amend page 2, line 5, after "30," by striking out "2027," and inserting "2025,".
5. Amend page 2, line 11, after "1," by striking out "2027," and inserting "2025,".
6. Amend page 2, line 15, by striking out "2027," and inserting "2025,".
7. Amend page 2, line 20, after "1," by striking out "2027," and inserting "2025,".
8. Amend page 2, line 25, after "30," by striking out "2027," and inserting "2025,".
9. Amend page 3, line 4, after "1," by striking out "2027," and inserting "2025,".
10. Amend page 3, line 7, by striking out "2027," and inserting "2025,".

The motion did not prevail and the amendments were not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Skaggs moved that the bill be placed on the order of Third Reading of Bills.

The motion prevailed.

House Bill No. 4995, entitled

A bill to amend 1993 PA 23, entitled "Michigan limited liability company act," by amending section 1101 (MCL 450.5101), as amended by 2019 PA 70.

Was read a second time, and the question being on the adoption of the proposed substitute (H-2) previously recommended by the Committee on Appropriations,

The substitute (H-2) was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. DeBoer moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 2, line 3, after "30," by striking out "2027," and inserting "2025,".
2. Amend page 2, line 4, after "30," by striking out "2027," and inserting "2025,".

The motion did not prevail and the amendments were not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Skaggs moved that the bill be placed on the order of Third Reading of Bills.

The motion prevailed.

House Bill No. 4996, entitled

A bill to amend 1982 PA 162, entitled "Nonprofit corporation act," by amending section 1060 (MCL 450.3060), as amended by 2019 PA 69.

Was read a second time, and the question being on the adoption of the proposed substitute (H-2) previously recommended by the Committee on Appropriations,

The substitute (H-2) was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Kuhn moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 3, line 2, after "30," by striking out "2027," and inserting "2025,".
2. Amend page 3, line 2, after "1," by striking out "2027," and inserting "2025,".

The motion did not prevail and the amendments were not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Skaggs moved that the bill be placed on the order of Third Reading of Bills.

The motion prevailed.

House Bill No. 4997, entitled

A bill to amend 1972 PA 284, entitled "Business corporation act," by amending section 1060 (MCL 450.2060), as amended by 2019 PA 68.

Was read a second time, and the question being on the adoption of the proposed substitute (H-2) previously recommended by the Committee on Appropriations,

The substitute (H-2) was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Schuette moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 2, line 29, after "30," by striking out "2027," and inserting "2025,".
2. Amend page 2, line 29, after "1," by striking out "2027," and inserting "2025,".

The motion did not prevail and the amendments were not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Skaggs moved that the bill be placed on the order of Third Reading of Bills.

The motion prevailed.

House Bill No. 5000, entitled

A bill to amend 1935 PA 120, entitled "An act to prescribe a method for the fingerprinting of residents of the state; to provide for the recording and filing of the fingerprints by the central records division of the department of state police; and to impose a fee," by amending section 3 (MCL 28.273), as amended by 2019 PA 78.

Was read a second time, and the question being on the adoption of the proposed substitute (H-1) previously recommended by the Committee on Appropriations,

The substitute (H-1) was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Steele moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 1, line 1, after "1," by striking out "2027" and inserting "2025".

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Wilson moved that the bill be placed on the order of Third Reading of Bills.

The motion prevailed.

House Bill No. 5003, entitled

A bill to amend 1974 PA 258, entitled "Mental health code," by amending section 139 (MCL 330.1139), as amended by 2019 PA 83.

Was read a second time, and the question being on the adoption of the proposed substitute (H-1) previously recommended by the Committee on Appropriations,

The substitute (H-1) was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Phil Green moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 1, line 1, after "1," by striking out "2027" and inserting "2025".

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Morse moved that the bill be placed on the order of Third Reading of Bills.

The motion prevailed.

House Bill No. 5004, entitled

A bill to amend 1978 PA 368, entitled "Public health code," by amending sections 5801, 6237, 13522, and 20161 (MCL 333.5801, 333.6237, 333.13522, and 333.20161), section 5801 as amended by 2015 PA 91, section 6237 as amended by 2019 PA 75, section 13522 as amended by 1994 PA 100, and section 20161 as amended by 2022 PA 187.

Was read a second time, and the question being on the adoption of the proposed substitute (H-3) previously recommended by the Committee on Appropriations,

The substitute (H-3) was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Slagh moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 2, line 5, after "1," by striking out "~~2027~~," and inserting "~~2025~~,".

2. Amend page 5, line 4, after "1," by striking out "~~2028~~," and inserting "~~2025~~,".

3. Amend page 12, line 23, after "1," by striking out "~~2027~~," and inserting "~~2025~~,".

4. Amend page 16, line 7, after "1," by striking out "~~2027~~," and inserting "~~2025~~,".

The motion did not prevail and the amendments were not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Steele moved to substitute (H-4) the bill.

The motion did not prevail and the substitute (H-4) was not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Morse moved that the bill be placed on the order of Third Reading of Bills.

The motion prevailed.

House Bill No. 5007, entitled

A bill to amend 1994 PA 451, entitled "Natural resources and environmental protection act," by amending sections 3104, 3110, 3118, 3120, 3122, 3132, 3306, 4104, 4112, 5522, 9123, 11108, 11109, 11123, 11153,

11509, 11512, 11525a, 11717b, 12109, 12112, 16904, 17303, 17317, 21506a, 21508, 30104, 30109, 31509, 32312, 32513, 32707, 32723, 33911, 33929, 61525, 61525a, 62509, 62509a, 63103d, 63205, 63215, 63405, 63413, 63711, 80130, 80315, 81114, and 82156 (MCL 324.3104, 324.3110, 324.3118, 324.3120, 324.3122, 324.3132, 324.3306, 324.4104, 324.4112, 324.5522, 324.9123, 324.11108, 324.11109, 324.11123, 324.11153, 324.11509, 324.11512, 324.11525a, 324.11717b, 324.12109, 324.12112, 324.16904, 324.17303, 324.17317, 324.21506a, 324.21508, 324.30104, 324.30109, 324.31509, 324.32312, 324.32513, 324.32707, 324.32723, 324.33911, 324.33929, 324.61525, 324.61525a, 324.62509, 324.62509a, 324.63103d, 324.63205, 324.63215, 324.63405, 324.63413, 324.63711, 324.80130, 324.80315, 324.81114, and 324.82156), sections 3104, 3110, 3118, 3120, 4104, 11153, 30104, 30109, 32312, and 32513 as amended by 2021 PA 91, sections 3122 and 4112 as amended by 2019 PA 79, section 3132 as added by 1997 PA 29, section 3306 as amended by 2014 PA 253, section 5522 as amended by 2019 PA 119, section 9123 as amended by 2000 PA 504, section 11108 as amended by 2013 PA 73, section 11109 as added by 2018 PA 689, section 11123 as amended by 2014 PA 254, sections 11509 and 11512 as amended by 2022 PA 245, section 11525a as amended by 2022 PA 246, section 11717b as amended by 2008 PA 492, sections 12109 and 12112 as amended by 2017 PA 90, section 16904 as amended by 2014 PA 543, sections 17303 and 17317 as amended by 2019 PA 85, section 21506a as amended by 2017 PA 134, section 21508 as amended by 2016 PA 467, sections 31509, 61525, and 62509 as amended by 2004 PA 325, section 32707 as amended by 2008 PA 182, section 32723 as amended by 2008 PA 180, sections 33911 and 33929 as amended by 2006 PA 496, section 61525a as added by 1998 PA 252, section 62509a as added by 1998 PA 467, section 63103d as amended by 2011 PA 214, sections 63205 and 63215 as added by 2004 PA 449, sections 63405 and 63413 as added by 2017 PA 40, section 63711 as added by 1995 PA 57, and sections 80130, 80315, 81114, and 82156 as amended by 2019 PA 81.

Was read a second time, and the question being on the adoption of the proposed substitute (H-3) previously recommended by the Committee on Appropriations,

The substitute (H-3) was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Borton moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 1, line 1, after "1," by striking out "~~2027,~~" and inserting "~~2025,~~".
2. Amend page 3, line 9, after "1," by striking out "~~2027:~~" and inserting "~~2025:~~".
3. Amend page 6, line 11, after "1," by striking out "~~2027,~~" and inserting "~~2025,~~".
4. Amend page 14, line 24, after "1," by striking out "~~2027.~~" and inserting "~~2025.~~".
5. Amend page 18, line 5, after "1," by striking out "~~2027,~~" and inserting "~~2025,~~".
6. Amend page 19, line 29, after "1," by striking out "~~2027,~~" and inserting "~~2025,~~".
7. Amend page 20, line 24, after "1," by striking out "~~2027.~~" and inserting "~~2025.~~".
8. Amend page 22, line 2, after "1," by striking out "~~2027.~~" and inserting "~~2025.~~".
9. Amend page 23, line 6, after "1," by striking out "~~2027.~~" and inserting "~~2025.~~".
10. Amend page 24, line 16, after "1," by striking out "~~2027.~~" and inserting "~~2025.~~".

The motion did not prevail and the amendments were not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Bollin moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 20, line 16, after "fee" by striking out "~~of \$15.00 per record.~~" and inserting "specified annually by the legislature, or if none, a market-based price established by the secretary of state. **For the fiscal year ending September 30, 2024, the fee is \$11.00 per record.**".
2. Amend page 21, line 23, after "fee" by striking out "~~of \$15.00 per record.~~" and inserting "specified annually by the legislature, or if none, a market-based price established by the secretary of state. **For the fiscal year ending September 30, 2024, the fee is \$11.00 per record.**".
3. Amend page 22, line 27, after "fee" by striking out "~~of \$15.00 per record.~~" and inserting "specified annually by the legislature, or if none, a market-based price established by the secretary of state. **For the fiscal year ending September 30, 2024, the fee is \$11.00 per record.**".
4. Amend page 24, line 8, after "fee" by striking out "~~of \$15.00 per record.~~" and inserting "specified annually by the legislature, or if none, a market-based price established by the secretary of state. **For the fiscal year ending September 30, 2024, the fee is \$11.00 per record.**".

The motion did not prevail and the amendments were not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Beson moved to amend the bill as follows:

1. Amend page 2, line 4, after "facility," by striking out "~~\$7,500.00.~~" and inserting "\$3,650.00".
2. Amend page 2, line 6, after "residents," by striking out "~~\$1,800.00.~~" and inserting "\$1,500.00".

3. Amend page 2, line 7, after “facility,” by striking out “\$300.00.” and inserting “\$250.00.”

4. Amend page 2, line 8, after “facility,” by striking out “\$240.00.” and inserting “\$200.00.”

The motion did not prevail and the amendments were not adopted, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. McKinney moved that the bill be placed on the order of Third Reading of Bills.

The motion prevailed.

By unanimous consent the House returned to the order of

Third Reading of Bills

Rep. Aiyash moved that **House Bill No. 4991** be placed on its immediate passage.

The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

House Bill No. 4991, entitled

A bill to amend 1972 PA 222, entitled “An act to provide for an official personal identification card; to provide for its form, issuance and use; to regulate the use and disclosure of information obtained from the card; to prescribe the powers and duties of the secretary of state; to prescribe fees; to prescribe certain penalties for violations; and to provide an appropriation for certain purposes,” by amending section 7 (MCL 28.297), as amended by 2019 PA 80.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 296

Yeas—56

Aiyash	Edwards	McFall	Scott
Andrews	Farhat	McKinney	Shannon
Arbit	Fitzgerald	Mentzer	Skaggs
Brabec	Glanville	Miller	Snyder
Breen	Grant	Morgan	Steckloff
Brixie	Haadsma	Morse	Stone
Byrnes	Hill	Neeley	Tate
Carter, B.	Hood	O’Neal	Tsernoglou
Carter, T.	Hope	Paiz	Wegela
Churches	Hoskins	Pohutsky	Weiss
Coffia	Koleszar	Price	Whitsett
Coleman	Liberati	Puri	Wilson
Conlin	MacDonell	Rheingans	Witwer
Dievendorf	Martus	Rogers	Young

Nays—54

Alexander	DeSana	Maddock	Schriver
Aragona	Filler	Markkanen	Schuette
Beeler	Fink	Martin	Slagh
BeGole	Fox	Meerman	Smit
Beson	Friske	Mueller	St. Germaine
Bezotte	Green, P.	Neyer	Steele
Bierlein	Greene, J.	Outman	Thompson
Bollin	Hall	Paquette	Tisdell
Borton	Harris	Posthumus	VanderWall
Bruck	Hoadley	Prestin	VanWoerkom
Carra	Johnsen	Rigas	Wendzel
Cavitt	Kuhn	Roth	Wozniak

DeBoer
DeBoyer

Kunse
Lightner

Schmaltz

Zorn

In The Chair: Pohutsky

The House agreed to the title of the bill.
Rep. Aiyash moved that the bill be given immediate effect.
The motion prevailed, 2/3 of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Aiyash moved that **House Bill No. 4993** be placed on its immediate passage.
The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

House Bill No. 4993, entitled

A bill to amend 1979 PA 152, entitled “State license fee act,” by amending sections 13, 17, 21, 25, 27, 31, 37, and 38 (MCL 338.2213, 338.2217, 338.2221, 338.2225, 338.2227, 338.2231, 338.2237, and 338.2238), as amended by 2019 PA 71.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 297

Yeas—56

Aiyash	Edwards	McFall	Scott
Andrews	Farhat	McKinney	Shannon
Arbit	Fitzgerald	Mentzer	Skaggs
Brabec	Glanville	Miller	Snyder
Breen	Grant	Morgan	Steckloff
Brixie	Haadsma	Morse	Stone
Byrnes	Hill	Neeley	Tate
Carter, B.	Hood	O’Neal	Tsernoglou
Carter, T.	Hope	Paiz	Wegela
Churches	Hoskins	Pohutsky	Weiss
Coffia	Koleszar	Price	Whitsett
Coleman	Liberati	Puri	Wilson
Conlin	MacDonell	Rheingans	Witwer
Dievendorf	Martus	Rogers	Young

Nays—54

Alexander	DeSana	Maddock	Schriver
Aragona	Filler	Markkanen	Schuette
Beeler	Fink	Martin	Slagh
BeGole	Fox	Meerman	Smit
Beson	Friske	Mueller	St. Germaine
Bezotte	Green, P.	Neyer	Steele
Bierlein	Greene, J.	Outman	Thompson
Bollin	Hall	Paquette	Tisdell
Borton	Harris	Posthumus	VanderWall
Bruck	Hoadley	Prestin	VanWoerkom
Carra	Johnsen	Rigas	Wendzel
Cavitt	Kuhn	Roth	Wozniak
DeBoer	Kunse	Schmaltz	Zorn
DeBoyer	Lightner		

In The Chair: Pohutsky

The House agreed to the title of the bill.

Rep. Aiyash moved that the bill be given immediate effect.

The motion prevailed, 2/3 of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Aiyash moved that **House Bill No. 4994** be placed on its immediate passage.

The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

House Bill No. 4994, entitled

A bill to amend 2008 PA 551, entitled “Uniform securities act (2002),” by amending section 410 (MCL 451.2410), as amended by 2019 PA 73.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 298

Yeas—56

Aiyash	Edwards	McFall	Scott
Andrews	Farhat	McKinney	Shannon
Arbit	Fitzgerald	Mentzer	Skaggs
Brabec	Glanville	Miller	Snyder
Breen	Grant	Morgan	Steckloff
Brixie	Haadsma	Morse	Stone
Byrnes	Hill	Neeley	Tate
Carter, B.	Hood	O’Neal	Tsernoglou
Carter, T.	Hope	Paiz	Wegela
Churches	Hoskins	Pohutsky	Weiss
Coffia	Koleszar	Price	Whitsett
Coleman	Liberati	Puri	Wilson
Conlin	MacDonell	Rheingans	Witwer
Dievendorf	Martus	Rogers	Young

Nays—54

Alexander	DeSana	Maddock	Schriver
Aragona	Filler	Markkanen	Schuette
Beeler	Fink	Martin	Slagh
BeGole	Fox	Meerman	Smit
Beson	Friske	Mueller	St. Germaine
Bezotte	Green, P.	Neyer	Steele
Bierlein	Greene, J.	Outman	Thompson
Bollin	Hall	Paquette	Tisdell
Borton	Harris	Posthumus	VanderWall
Bruck	Hoadley	Prestin	VanWoerkom
Carra	Johnsen	Rigas	Wendzel
Cavitt	Kuhn	Roth	Wozniak
DeBoer	Kunse	Schmaltz	Zorn
DeBoyer	Lightner		

In The Chair: Pohutsky

The House agreed to the title of the bill.

Rep. Aiyash moved that the bill be given immediate effect.

The motion prevailed, 2/3 of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Aiyash moved that **House Bill No. 4995** be placed on its immediate passage.
The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

House Bill No. 4995, entitled

A bill to amend 1993 PA 23, entitled “Michigan limited liability company act,” by amending section 1101 (MCL 450.5101), as amended by 2019 PA 70.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 299

Yeas—56

Aiyash	Edwards	McFall	Scott
Andrews	Farhat	McKinney	Shannon
Arbit	Fitzgerald	Mentzer	Skaggs
Brabec	Glanville	Miller	Snyder
Breen	Grant	Morgan	Steckloff
Brixie	Haadsma	Morse	Stone
Byrnes	Hill	Neeley	Tate
Carter, B.	Hood	O’Neal	Tsernoglou
Carter, T.	Hope	Paiz	Wegela
Churches	Hoskins	Pohutsky	Weiss
Coffia	Koleszar	Price	Whitsett
Coleman	Liberati	Puri	Wilson
Conlin	MacDonell	Rheingans	Witwer
Dievendorf	Martus	Rogers	Young

Nays—54

Alexander	DeSana	Maddock	Schriver
Aragona	Filler	Markkanen	Schuette
Beeler	Fink	Martin	Slagh
BeGole	Fox	Meerman	Smit
Beson	Friske	Mueller	St. Germaine
Bezotte	Green, P.	Neyer	Steele
Bierlein	Greene, J.	Outman	Thompson
Bollin	Hall	Paquette	Tisdell
Borton	Harris	Posthumus	VanderWall
Bruck	Hoadley	Prestin	VanWoerkom
Carra	Johnsen	Rigas	Wendzel
Cavitt	Kuhn	Roth	Wozniak
DeBoer	Kunse	Schmaltz	Zorn
DeBoyer	Lightner		

In The Chair: Pohutsky

The House agreed to the title of the bill.

Rep. Aiyash moved that the bill be given immediate effect.

The motion prevailed, 2/3 of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Aiyash moved that **House Bill No. 4996** be placed on its immediate passage.

The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

House Bill No. 4996, entitled

A bill to amend 1982 PA 162, entitled “Nonprofit corporation act,” by amending section 1060 (MCL 450.3060), as amended by 2019 PA 69.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 300**Yeas—56**

Aiyash	Edwards	McFall	Scott
Andrews	Farhat	McKinney	Shannon
Arbit	Fitzgerald	Mentzer	Skaggs
Brabec	Glanville	Miller	Snyder
Breen	Grant	Morgan	Steckloff
Brixie	Haadsma	Morse	Stone
Byrnes	Hill	Neeley	Tate
Carter, B.	Hood	O'Neal	Tsernoglou
Carter, T.	Hope	Paiz	Wegela
Churches	Hoskins	Pohutsky	Weiss
Coffia	Koleszar	Price	Whitsett
Coleman	Liberati	Puri	Wilson
Conlin	MacDonell	Rheingans	Witwer
Dievendorf	Martus	Rogers	Young

Nays—54

Alexander	DeSana	Maddock	Schriver
Aragona	Filler	Markkanen	Schuette
Beeler	Fink	Martin	Slagh
BeGole	Fox	Meerman	Smit
Beson	Friske	Mueller	St. Germaine
Bezotte	Green, P.	Neyer	Steele
Bierlein	Greene, J.	Outman	Thompson
Bollin	Hall	Paquette	Tisdell
Borton	Harris	Posthumus	VanderWall
Bruck	Hoadley	Prestin	VanWoerkom
Carra	Johnsen	Rigas	Wendzel
Cavitt	Kuhn	Roth	Wozniak
DeBoer	Kunse	Schmaltz	Zorn
DeBoyer	Lightner		

In The Chair: Pohutsky

The House agreed to the title of the bill.

Rep. Aiyash moved that the bill be given immediate effect.

The motion prevailed, 2/3 of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Aiyash moved that **House Bill No. 4997** be placed on its immediate passage.

The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

House Bill No. 4997, entitled

A bill to amend 1972 PA 284, entitled "Business corporation act," by amending section 1060 (MCL 450.2060), as amended by 2019 PA 68.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 301**Yeas—56**

Aiyash	Edwards	McFall	Scott
Andrews	Farhat	McKinney	Shannon
Arbit	Fitzgerald	Mentzer	Skaggs

Brabec	Glanville	Miller	Snyder
Breen	Grant	Morgan	Steckloff
Brixie	Haadsma	Morse	Stone
Bymes	Hill	Neeley	Tate
Carter, B.	Hood	O'Neal	Tsernoglou
Carter, T.	Hope	Paiz	Wegela
Churches	Hoskins	Pohutsky	Weiss
Coffia	Koleszar	Price	Whitsett
Coleman	Liberati	Puri	Wilson
Conlin	MacDonell	Rheingans	Witwer
Dievendorf	Martus	Rogers	Young

Nays—54

Alexander	DeSana	Maddock	Schriver
Aragona	Filler	Markkanen	Schuette
Beeler	Fink	Martin	Slagh
BeGole	Fox	Meerman	Smit
Beson	Friske	Mueller	St. Germaine
Bezotte	Green, P.	Neyer	Steele
Bierlein	Greene, J.	Outman	Thompson
Bollin	Hall	Paquette	Tisdell
Borton	Harris	Posthumus	VanderWall
Bruck	Hoadley	Prestin	VanWoerkom
Carra	Johnsen	Rigas	Wendzel
Cavitt	Kuhn	Roth	Wozniak
DeBoer	Kunse	Schmaltz	Zorn
DeBoyer	Lightner		

In The Chair: Pohutsky

The House agreed to the title of the bill.

Rep. Aiyash moved that the bill be given immediate effect.

The motion prevailed, 2/3 of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Aiyash moved that **House Bill No. 5000** be placed on its immediate passage.

The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

House Bill No. 5000, entitled

A bill to amend 1935 PA 120, entitled "An act to prescribe a method for the fingerprinting of residents of the state; to provide for the recording and filing of the fingerprints by the central records division of the department of state police; and to impose a fee," by amending section 3 (MCL 28.273), as amended by 2019 PA 78.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 302

Yeas—79

Aiyash	DeBoer	Markkanen	Schmaltz
Alexander	Dievendorf	Martus	Schuette
Andrews	Edwards	McFall	Scott
Aragona	Farhat	McKinney	Shannon

Arbit	Filler	Mentzer	Skaggs
Beson	Fitzgerald	Miller	Snyder
Bezotte	Glanville	Morgan	St. Germaine
Bierlein	Grant	Morse	Steckloff
Bollin	Haadsma	Mueller	Stone
Brabec	Harris	Neeley	Tate
Breen	Hill	O'Neal	Tsernoglou
Brixie	Hood	Paiz	VanWoerkom
Byrnes	Hope	Paquette	Wegela
Carter, B.	Hoskins	Pohutsky	Weiss
Carter, T.	Koleszar	Prestin	Wendzel
Cavitt	Kuhn	Price	Whitsett
Churches	Kunse	Puri	Wilson
Coffia	Liberati	Rheingans	Witwer
Coleman	Lightner	Rogers	Young
Conlin	MacDonell	Roth	

Nays—31

Beeler	Fox	Martin	Smit
BeGole	Friske	Meerman	Steele
Borton	Green, P.	Neyer	Thompson
Bruck	Greene, J.	Outman	Tisdell
Carra	Hall	Posthumus	VanderWall
DeBoyer	Hoadley	Rigas	Wozniak
DeSana	Johnsen	Schrivver	Zorn
Fink	Maddock	Slagh	

In The Chair: Pohutsky

The House agreed to the title of the bill.

Rep. Aiyash moved that the bill be given immediate effect.

The motion prevailed, 2/3 of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Aiyash moved that **House Bill No. 5003** be placed on its immediate passage.

The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

House Bill No. 5003, entitled

A bill to amend 1974 PA 258, entitled "Mental health code," by amending section 139 (MCL 330.1139), as amended by 2019 PA 83.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 303**Yeas—56**

Aiyash	Edwards	McFall	Scott
Andrews	Farhat	McKinney	Shannon
Arbit	Fitzgerald	Mentzer	Skaggs
Brabec	Glanville	Miller	Snyder
Breen	Grant	Morgan	Steckloff
Brixie	Haadsma	Morse	Stone
Byrnes	Hill	Neeley	Tate

Carter, B.	Hood	O'Neal	Tsernoglou
Carter, T.	Hope	Paiz	Wegela
Churches	Hoskins	Pohutsky	Weiss
Coffia	Koleszar	Price	Whitsett
Coleman	Liberati	Puri	Wilson
Conlin	MacDonell	Rheingans	Witwer
Dievendorf	Martus	Rogers	Young

Nays—54

Alexander	DeSana	Maddock	Schriver
Aragona	Filler	Markkanen	Schuette
Beeler	Fink	Martin	Slagh
BeGole	Fox	Meerman	Smit
Beson	Friske	Mueller	St. Germaine
Bezotte	Green, P.	Neyer	Steele
Bierlein	Greene, J.	Outman	Thompson
Bollin	Hall	Paquette	Tisdell
Borton	Harris	Posthumus	VanderWall
Bruck	Hoadley	Prestin	VanWoerkom
Carra	Johnsen	Rigas	Wendzel
Cavitt	Kuhn	Roth	Wozniak
DeBoer	Kunse	Schmaltz	Zorn
DeBoyer	Lightner		

In The Chair: Pohutsky

The House agreed to the title of the bill.

Rep. Aiyash moved that the bill be given immediate effect.

The motion prevailed, 2/3 of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Aiyash moved that **House Bill No. 5004** be placed on its immediate passage.

The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

House Bill No. 5004, entitled

A bill to amend 1978 PA 368, entitled "Public health code," by amending sections 5801, 6237, 13522, and 20161 (MCL 333.5801, 333.6237, 333.13522, and 333.20161), section 5801 as amended by 2015 PA 91, section 6237 as amended by 2019 PA 75, section 13522 as amended by 1994 PA 100, and section 20161 as amended by 2022 PA 187.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 304

Yeas—56

Aiyash	Edwards	McFall	Scott
Andrews	Farhat	McKinney	Shannon
Arbit	Fitzgerald	Mentzer	Skaggs
Brabec	Glanville	Miller	Snyder
Breen	Grant	Morgan	Steckloff
Brixie	Haadsma	Morse	Stone
Byrnes	Hill	Neeley	Tate
Carter, B.	Hood	O'Neal	Tsernoglou

Carter, T.	Hope	Paiz	Wegela
Churches	Hoskins	Pohutsky	Weiss
Coffia	Koleszar	Price	Whitsett
Coleman	Liberati	Puri	Wilson
Conlin	MacDonell	Rheingans	Witwer
Dievendorf	Martus	Rogers	Young

Nays—54

Alexander	DeSana	Maddock	Schriver
Aragona	Filler	Markkanen	Schuette
Beeler	Fink	Martin	Slagh
BeGole	Fox	Meerman	Smit
Beson	Friske	Mueller	St. Germaine
Bezotte	Green, P.	Neyer	Steele
Bierlein	Greene, J.	Outman	Thompson
Bollin	Hall	Paquette	Tisdell
Borton	Harris	Posthumus	VanderWall
Bruck	Hoadley	Prestin	VanWoerkom
Carra	Johnsen	Rigas	Wendzel
Cavitt	Kuhn	Roth	Wozniak
DeBoer	Kunse	Schmaltz	Zorn
DeBoyer	Lightner		

In The Chair: Pohutsky

The House agreed to the title of the bill.

Rep. Aiyash moved that the bill be given immediate effect.

The motion prevailed, 2/3 of the members serving voting therefor.

Rep. Aiyash moved that **House Bill No. 5007** be placed on its immediate passage.

The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

House Bill No. 5007, entitled

A bill to amend 1994 PA 451, entitled “Natural resources and environmental protection act,” by amending sections 3104, 3110, 3118, 3120, 3122, 3132, 3306, 4104, 4112, 5522, 9123, 11108, 11109, 11123, 11153, 11509, 11512, 11525a, 11717b, 12109, 12112, 16904, 17303, 17317, 21506a, 21508, 30104, 30109, 31509, 32312, 32513, 32707, 32723, 33911, 33929, 61525, 61525a, 62509, 62509a, 63103d, 63205, 63215, 63405, 63413, 63711, 80130, 80315, 81114, and 82156 (MCL 324.3104, 324.3110, 324.3118, 324.3120, 324.3122, 324.3132, 324.3306, 324.4104, 324.4112, 324.5522, 324.9123, 324.11108, 324.11109, 324.11123, 324.11153, 324.11509, 324.11512, 324.11525a, 324.11717b, 324.12109, 324.12112, 324.16904, 324.17303, 324.17317, 324.21506a, 324.21508, 324.30104, 324.30109, 324.31509, 324.32312, 324.32513, 324.32707, 324.32723, 324.33911, 324.33929, 324.61525, 324.61525a, 324.62509, 324.62509a, 324.63103d, 324.63205, 324.63215, 324.63405, 324.63413, 324.63711, 324.80130, 324.80315, 324.81114, and 324.82156), sections 3104, 3110, 3118, 3120, 4104, 11153, 30104, 30109, 32312, and 32513 as amended by 2021 PA 91, sections 3122 and 4112 as amended by 2019 PA 79, section 3132 as added by 1997 PA 29, section 3306 as amended by 2014 PA 253, section 5522 as amended by 2019 PA 119, section 9123 as amended by 2000 PA 504, section 11108 as amended by 2013 PA 73, section 11109 as added by 2018 PA 689, section 11123 as amended by 2014 PA 254, sections 11509 and 11512 as amended by 2022 PA 245, section 11525a as amended by 2022 PA 246, section 11717b as amended by 2008 PA 492, sections 12109 and 12112 as amended by 2017 PA 90, section 16904 as amended by 2014 PA 543, sections 17303 and 17317 as amended by 2019 PA 85, section 21506a as amended by 2017 PA 134, section 21508 as amended by 2016 PA 467, sections 31509, 61525, and 62509 as amended by 2004 PA 325, section 32707 as amended by 2008 PA 182, section 32723 as amended by 2008 PA 180, sections 33911 and 33929 as amended by 2006 PA 496, section 61525a as added by 1998 PA 252, section 62509a as added by

1998 PA 467, section 63103d as amended by 2011 PA 214, sections 63205 and 63215 as added by 2004 PA 449, sections 63405 and 63413 as added by 2017 PA 40, section 63711 as added by 1995 PA 57, and sections 80130, 80315, 81114, and 82156 as amended by 2019 PA 81.

Was read a third time and passed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, by yeas and nays, as follows:

Roll Call No. 305**Yeas—56**

Aiyash	Edwards	McFall	Scott
Andrews	Farhat	McKinney	Shannon
Arbit	Fitzgerald	Mentzer	Skaggs
Brabec	Glanville	Miller	Snyder
Breen	Grant	Morgan	Steckloff
Brixie	Haadsma	Morse	Stone
Byrnes	Hill	Neeley	Tate
Carter, B.	Hood	O'Neal	Tsernoglou
Carter, T.	Hope	Paiz	Wegela
Churches	Hoskins	Pohutsky	Weiss
Coffia	Koleszar	Price	Whitsett
Coleman	Liberati	Puri	Wilson
Conlin	MacDonell	Rheingans	Witwer
Dievendorf	Martus	Rogers	Young

Nays—54

Alexander	DeSana	Maddock	Schriver
Aragona	Filler	Markkanen	Schuette
Beeler	Fink	Martin	Slagh
BeGole	Fox	Meerman	Smit
Beson	Friske	Mueller	St. Germaine
Bezotte	Green, P.	Neyer	Steele
Bierlein	Greene, J.	Outman	Thompson
Bollin	Hall	Paquette	Tisdell
Borton	Harris	Posthumus	VanderWall
Bruck	Hoadley	Prestin	VanWoerkom
Carra	Johnsen	Rigas	Wendzel
Cavitt	Kuhn	Roth	Wozniak
DeBoer	Kunse	Schmaltz	Zorn
DeBoyer	Lightner		

In The Chair: Pohutsky

The question being on agreeing to the title of the bill,

Rep. Aiyash moved to amend the title to read as follows:

A bill to amend 1994 PA 451, entitled "Natural resources and environmental protection act," by amending sections 3122, 4112, 5522, 11525a, 17303, 17317, 80130, 80315, 81114, and 82156 (MCL 324.3122, 324.4112, 324.5522, 324.11525a, 324.17303, 324.17317, 324.80130, 324.80315, 324.81114, and 324.82156), sections 3122 and 4112 as amended by 2019 PA 79, section 5522 as amended by 2019 PA 119, section 11525a as amended by 2022 PA 246, sections 17303 and 17317 as amended by 2019 PA 85, and sections 80130, 80315, 81114, and 82156 as amended by 2019 PA 81.

The motion prevailed.

The House agreed to the title as amended.

Rep. Aiyash moved that the bill be given immediate effect.

The motion prevailed, 2/3 of the members serving voting therefor.

By unanimous consent the House returned to the order of

Motions and Resolutions

Rep. Kunse moved that the Committee on Ethics and Oversight be discharged from further consideration of **House Bill No. 4264**.

(For first notice see House Journal No. 74, p. 1758.)

The question being on the motion made by Rep. Kunse,

The motion did not prevail, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Kunse moved that the Committee on Ethics and Oversight be discharged from further consideration of **House Bill No. 4265**.

(For first notice see House Journal No. 74, p. 1758.)

The question being on the motion made by Rep. Kunse,

The motion did not prevail, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Kunse moved that the Committee on Ethics and Oversight be discharged from further consideration of **House Bill No. 4266**.

(For first notice see House Journal No. 74, p. 1758.)

The question being on the motion made by Rep. Kunse,

The motion did not prevail, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Kunse moved that the Committee on Ethics and Oversight be discharged from further consideration of **House Bill No. 4267**.

(For first notice see House Journal No. 74, p. 1759.)

The question being on the motion made by Rep. Kunse,

The motion did not prevail, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Kunse moved that the Committee on Ethics and Oversight be discharged from further consideration of **House Bill No. 4268**.

(For first notice see House Journal No. 74, p. 1759.)

The question being on the motion made by Rep. Kunse,

The motion did not prevail, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Kunse moved that the Committee on Ethics and Oversight be discharged from further consideration of **House Bill No. 4269**.

(For first notice see House Journal No. 74, p. 1759.)

The question being on the motion made by Rep. Kunse,

The motion did not prevail, a majority of the members serving not voting therefor.

Rep. Hope moved that House Committees be given leave to meet during the balance of today's session.
The motion prevailed.

Rep. Hope moved that when the House adjourns today it stand adjourned until Tuesday, September 26, at 1:30 p.m.

The motion prevailed.

Announcement by the Clerk of Printing and Enrollment

The Clerk announced that the following bills had been reproduced and made available electronically on Tuesday, September 19:

House Bill Nos. 5012 5013 5014 5015 5016 5017 5018 5019

Senate Bill Nos. 503 504 505 506 507 508 509 510 511 512

Reports of Standing Committees

The Committee on Health Policy, by Rep. Rogers, Chair, reported

House Bill No. 4949, entitled

A bill to list certain constitutional rights related to reproductive freedom; to prohibit the violation of certain rights and provide remedies; to provide for the powers and duties of certain state and local governmental officers and entities; and to repeal acts and parts of acts.

Without amendment and with the recommendation that the bill pass.

The bill was referred to the order of Second Reading of Bills.

Favorable Roll Call

To Report Out:

Yeas: Reps. Rogers, Brenda Carter, Haadsma, Neeley, Glanville, Coffia, Conlin, Farhat, Fitzgerald, Miller and Rheingans

Nays: Reps. Whitsett, VanderWall, Filler, Mueller, VanWoerkom, Roth, Schmaltz and Thompson

The Committee on Health Policy, by Rep. Rogers, Chair, reported

House Bill No. 4950, entitled

A bill to amend 1978 PA 368, entitled "Public health code," by amending sections 2690, 2803, 2848, 2854, 9141, 10102, 16221, 16226, 16245, 16299, and 20115 (MCL 333.2690, 333.2803, 333.2848, 333.2854, 333.9141, 333.10102, 333.16221, 333.16226, 333.16245, 333.16299, and 333.20115), section 2690 as amended by 2016 PA 386, section 2803 as amended by 2020 PA 54, sections 2848 and 20115 as amended and section 2854 as added by 2012 PA 499, section 9141 as added by 2004 PA 501, section 10102 as amended by 2008 PA 39, section 16221 as amended by 2023 PA 47, section 16226 as amended by 2023 PA 48, section 16245 as amended by 2014 PA 413, and section 16299 as amended by 2020 PA 375; and to repeal acts and parts of acts.

Without amendment and with the recommendation that the bill pass.

The bill was referred to the order of Second Reading of Bills.

Favorable Roll Call

To Report Out:

Yeas: Reps. Rogers, Brenda Carter, Haadsma, Neeley, Glanville, Coffia, Conlin, Farhat, Fitzgerald, Miller and Rheingans

Nays: Reps. Whitsett, VanderWall, Filler, Mueller, VanWoerkom, Roth, Schmaltz and Thompson

The Committee on Health Policy, by Rep. Rogers, Chair, reported

House Bill No. 4953, entitled

A bill to amend 1961 PA 236, entitled "Revised judicature act of 1961," by amending section 5711 (MCL 600.5711), as amended by 2014 PA 223.

Without amendment and with the recommendation that the bill pass.

The bill was referred to the order of Second Reading of Bills.

Favorable Roll Call

To Report Out:

Yeas: Reps. Rogers, Brenda Carter, Haadsma, Neeley, Glanville, Coffia, Conlin, Fitzgerald, Miller and Rheingans

Nays: Reps. Whitsett, VanderWall, Filler, Mueller, VanWoerkom, Roth, Schmaltz and Thompson

The Committee on Health Policy, by Rep. Rogers, Chair, reported

House Bill No. 4954, entitled

A bill to amend 1979 PA 94, entitled "The state school aid act of 1979," by amending section 6 (MCL 388.1606), as amended by 2023 PA 103.

Without amendment and with the recommendation that the bill pass.

The bill was referred to the order of Second Reading of Bills.

Favorable Roll Call

To Report Out:

Yeas: Reps. Rogers, Brenda Carter, Haadsma, Neeley, Glanville, Coffia, Conlin, Farhat, Fitzgerald, Miller and Rheingans

Nays: Reps. Whitsett, VanderWall, Filler, Mueller, VanWoerkom, Roth, Schmaltz and Thompson

The Committee on Health Policy, by Rep. Rogers, Chair, reported

House Bill No. 4955, entitled

A bill to amend 1980 PA 299, entitled "Occupational code," by amending section 1810 (MCL 339.1810), as amended by 2020 PA 265.

Without amendment and with the recommendation that the bill pass.

The bill was referred to the order of Second Reading of Bills.

Favorable Roll Call

To Report Out:

Yeas: Reps. Rogers, Brenda Carter, Haadsma, Neeley, Glanville, Coffia, Conlin, Farhat, Fitzgerald, Miller and Rheingans

Nays: Reps. Whitsett, VanderWall, Filler, Mueller, VanWoerkom, Roth, Schmaltz and Thompson

The Committee on Health Policy, by Rep. Rogers, Chair, reported

House Bill No. 4956, entitled

A bill to amend 1965 PA 213, entitled "An act to provide for setting aside the conviction in certain criminal cases; to provide for the effect of such action; to provide for the retention of certain nonpublic records and their use; to prescribe the powers and duties of certain public agencies and officers; and to prescribe penalties," by amending section 1 (MCL 780.621), as amended by 2021 PA 78.

Without amendment and with the recommendation that the bill pass.

The bill was referred to the order of Second Reading of Bills.

Favorable Roll Call

To Report Out:

Yeas: Reps. Rogers, Brenda Carter, Haadsma, Neeley, Glanville, Coffia, Conlin, Farhat, Fitzgerald, Miller and Rheingans

Nays: Reps. Whitsett, VanderWall, Filler, Mueller, VanWoerkom, Roth, Schmaltz and Thompson

COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE REPORT

The following report, submitted by Rep. Rogers, Chair, of the Committee on Health Policy, was received and read:

Meeting held on: Wednesday, September 20, 2023

Present: Reps. Rogers, Whitsett, Brenda Carter, Haadsma, Neeley, Glanville, Coffia, Conlin, Farhat, Fitzgerald, Miller, Rheingans, VanderWall, Filler, Mueller, VanWoerkom, Roth, Schmaltz and Thompson

COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE REPORT

The following report, submitted by Rep. Scott, Chair, of the Committee on Energy, Communications, and Technology, was received and read:

Meeting held on: Wednesday, September 20, 2023

Present: Reps. Scott, Andrews, Coleman, Whitsett, Neeley, Byrnes, Churches, Hill, MacDonell, McFall, Wendzel, Aragona, BeGole, Greene, Prestin and Schmaltz

Absent: Rep. Outman

Excused: Rep. Outman

Introduction of Bills

Rep. Schriver introduced

House Bill No. 5020, entitled

A bill to amend 1947 PA 336, entitled “An act to prohibit strikes by certain public employees; to provide review from disciplinary action with respect thereto; to provide for the mediation of grievances and the holding of elections; to declare and protect the rights and privileges of public employees; to require certain provisions in collective bargaining agreements; to prescribe means of enforcement and penalties for the violation of the provisions of this act; and to make appropriations,” (MCL 423.201 to 423.217) by adding section 10a.

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Government Operations.

Reps. Koleszar, Churches, Wegela, Shannon, Breen, Steckloff, Skaggs, Weiss, Brabec, Rheingans, Morse, Morgan, Arbit and Conlin introduced

House Bill No. 5021, entitled

A bill to amend 1980 PA 300, entitled “The public school employees retirement act of 1979,” by amending section 81d (MCL 38.1381d), as amended by 2017 PA 92.

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Education.

Reps. Farhat and Scott introduced

House Bill No. 5022, entitled

A bill to amend 1967 PA 281, entitled “Income tax act of 1967,” by amending sections 813, 831, and 839 (MCL 206.813, 206.831, and 206.839), as added by 2021 PA 135.

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Tax Policy.

Reps. Farhat, Miller, McFall, Snyder, Liberati, Wilson, Hoskins, Jaime Greene, Aragona, Phil Green, Bruck, Zorn, Kunse, O’Neal, Tyrone Carter, Wozniak, DeBoyer, Bollin, Aiyash and Whitsett introduced

House Bill No. 5023, entitled

A bill to amend 2018 PA 327, entitled “An act to prohibit a local government or law enforcement agency from operating a motor vehicle storage facility or towing operation; to prohibit a local government or law enforcement agency from accepting consideration from an authorized vendor that operates a motor vehicle storage facility; to prohibit a local government or law enforcement agency from requiring an authorized vendor to deliver a motor vehicle to a motor vehicle storage facility operated by a different authorized vendor; to provide for exceptions; to prescribe the powers and duties of certain state and local departments, entities, and officials; to prescribe the powers and duties of certain law enforcement agencies; and to provide for remedies and penalties,” by amending sections 2 and 3 (MCL 123.1402 and 123.1403).

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Regulatory Reform.

Rep. Farhat introduced

House Bill No. 5024, entitled

A bill to amend 2000 PA 92, entitled “Food law,” by amending sections 1111 and 4102 (MCL 289.1111 and 289.4102), section 1111 as amended by 2018 PA 92 and section 4102 as amended by 2012 PA 178.

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Agriculture.

Reps. Arbit, Byrnes, Stone, Scott, Morgan, Rheingans, MacDonell and Martus introduced

House Bill No. 5025, entitled

A bill to repeal 2017 PA 98, entitled “Educational instruction access act,” (MCL 123.1041 to 123.1047).

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Education.

Reps. Martus, Hoskins, Pohutsky, Coffia, Hill, Weiss, Morgan, McFall, Morse, Skaggs, Conlin, Rheingans, Farhat and Aiyash introduced

House Bill No. 5026, entitled

A bill to provide for the transition of transition-impacted industries into new industries; to create the community and worker economic transition office in the department of labor and economic opportunity; to

create certain advisory committees; and to provide for the powers and duties of certain state governmental officers and entities.

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Labor.

Reps. Pohutsky, Wilson, Conlin, Rheingans, Glanville, Arbit, Morgan, Haadsma, Brabec, Hill, Paiz, McKinney, Coffia, Morse, Scott, Puri and Aiyash introduced

House Bill No. 5027, entitled

A bill to amend 1939 PA 280, entitled “The social welfare act,” (MCL 400.1 to 400.119b) by adding section 109o.

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Health Policy.

Reps. Puri, Churches, Miller, Byrnes, Breen, Rheingans, Brabec, Tyrone Carter, Glanville, Koleszar, Skaggs, MacDonell, Morse, Conlin, Wilson, Hope, Morgan, Rogers, Scott, Farhat and Aiyash introduced

House Bill No. 5028, entitled

A bill to invalidate certain provisions in homeowners’ association agreements that prohibit the replacement, maintenance, installation, or operation of certain energy-saving improvements or modifications or the installation of solar energy systems; to provide for the adoption of certain policy statements; to prescribe penalties and remedies; and to provide for the powers and duties of certain state and local governmental officers and entities.

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Natural Resources, Environment, Tourism and Outdoor Recreation.

Reps. McKinney, Coffia, Rheingans, Brabec, Wilson, Morgan, Scott, Liberati, Brixie, O’Neal, Skaggs, Edwards, Young, Hope, Martus, Hill, Roth, Schmaltz and Aiyash introduced

House Bill No. 5029, entitled

A bill to amend 1945 PA 200, entitled “An act to define a marketable record title to an interest in land; to require the filing of notices of claim of interest in such land in certain cases within a definite period of time and to require the recording thereof; to make invalid and of no force or effect all claims with respect to the land affected thereby where no such notices of claim of interest are filed within the required period; to provide for certain penalties for filing slanderous notices of claim of interest, and to provide certain exceptions to the applicability and operation thereof,” by amending section 4 (MCL 565.104), as amended by 2022 PA 235.

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Economic Development and Small Business.

Reps. Coffia, Brabec, Rheingans, Morgan, Wilson, Bruck, Scott, Liberati, Brixie, O’Neal, Skaggs, Edwards, Young, Hope, Martus, Hill, Roth, Schmaltz and Aiyash introduced

House Bill No. 5030, entitled

A bill to amend 1966 PA 346, entitled “State housing development authority act of 1966,” by amending section 30 (MCL 125.1430), as amended by 1982 PA 506.

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Economic Development and Small Business.

Reps. Puri, Coffia, Rheingans, Brabec, Wilson, Bruck, Scott, Morgan, Liberati, Brixie, O’Neal, Skaggs, Edwards, Young, Hope, Martus, Hill, Roth, Schmaltz and Aiyash introduced

House Bill No. 5031, entitled

A bill to amend 1966 PA 346, entitled “State housing development authority act of 1966,” by amending section 21 (MCL 125.1421), as amended by 2000 PA 257.

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Economic Development and Small Business.

Reps. Snyder, Coffia, Rheingans, Brabec, Wilson, Morgan, Scott, Liberati, Brixie, O’Neal, Skaggs, Edwards, Young, Hope, Martus, Hill, Roth, Schmaltz and Aiyash introduced

House Bill No. 5032, entitled

A bill to amend 1966 PA 346, entitled “State housing development authority act of 1966,” by amending section 44 (MCL 125.1444), as amended by 2017 PA 127.

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Economic Development and Small Business.

Reps. McKinney, Coffia, Edwards, Brabec, Wilson, Rheingans, Bruck, Scott, Liberati, Brixie, Skaggs, O'Neal, Young, Hope, Martus, Hill, Roth, Schmaltz and Aiyash introduced

House Bill No. 5033, entitled

A bill to amend 1966 PA 346, entitled "State housing development authority act of 1966," by amending section 22 (MCL 125.1422), as amended by 2012 PA 327.

The bill was read a first time by its title and referred to the Committee on Economic Development and Small Business.

Rep. Lightner moved that the House adjourn.

The motion prevailed, the time being 12:10 p.m.

The Speaker Pro Tempore declared the House adjourned until Tuesday, September 26, at 1:30 p.m.

RICHARD J. BROWN
Clerk of the House of Representatives

